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The solicitation number listed in block 9A. above is hereby amended as follows:
The following Questions and Answers are provided

Responses to Questions Regarding NASA GRC Solicitation No. NNC07ZCH005J
Q1.1
The need for acoustic and vibration isolation of the MVF and RATF is addressed in the SOW (e.g., Sections 2.1 and 2.1.4), but the degree of vibration isolation between the new facilities and the existing SPF and the allowable sound pressure level inside the Disassembly Area are not specified. What criteria will be used to determine whether the vibration and acoustic isolation are adequate and when will this information be available? 

A1.1
a) Other than designing both vibro-acoustic facilities such that each facilities’ operation effects do not exceed equipment manufacturer’s specifications, there are no other facility vibration sensitivity requirements.


b) Acoustic levels exceeding 125 dB outside the RATF and inside the disassembly highbay area would require analysis of existing equipment inside the highbay.

Q1.2
Personnel and vehicular access to Plum Brook Station: Site access as it stands appears very limited. Access by construction vehicles and teams of site workmen will be very slow by the current access means. 

a) Is there a GRC plan to mitigate this issue? 

b)  Is access for construction available for second shift and weekends if required to meet schedule?  

A1.2
a) Construction contractor badges will be made available to regular construction traffic.  These badges will be renewed every three months or will be issued for the life of the contract.  This will reduce the time to enter the Station.  Material delivery to Plum Brook Station shall be coordinated by the Contractor’s Site Superintendent; material will not be accepted by the Main Gate Security personnel.  Materials leaving the station, including construction debris, shall be accompanied by a property pass signed by a Government representative.

b)  During the course of the work, permission for work outside normal working hours will generally be granted on an as needed basis as long as the Government can support the effort; the Government may also incur additional cost to support unscheduled off shift work.  The Contractor shall include in his proposed schedule second shift and/or weekend work that will be required to bring the contract to completion by the stated end date. 

Q1.3
SPF Disassembly Area access by personnel and construction equipment: This access is severely limited by the external doors. Some RATF and MVF components exceed the size limitations of the west Disassembly Area door. How can this equipment be brought into the Disassembly Area? It may be necessary to demolish a large portion of the existing exterior wall to promote ready access to the interior of the building. Will such demolition be allowed? 

A1.3
Full access through the test chamber will be made available during the following time periods:

April 1, 2008 through May 1, 2008

After June 15, 2008

Limited access may be able to be arranged during other time periods if transport of hardware could physically be accomplished past test equipment in the vacuum chamber.  Demolition of exterior walls for hardware passage is discouraged unless this new accessway may provide for a more cost-effective overall approach.  An approach where the new accessway serves as a permanent future hardware access, and this method would permit a lower-cost implementation for the acoustic chamber by eliminating the need for a removable wall section for hardware transfer through the West disassembly highbay door. 
Q1.4
Existing Disassembly Area bridge crane capacity (20 ton): Some of the equipment anticipated to be supplied for the MVF will weigh in excess of the crane’s capacity (e.g., the shakers and table). Some arrangements of the test articles and the test article fixtures may also weigh in excess of the crane’s capacity. Is there a plan to resolve this issue? 

A1.4
A replacement 40-ton bridge crane is scheduled to be installed into the disassembly highbay during a TBD timeframe (possibly prior to the end of calendar year 2007).  Contractor shall provide a not-to-exceed required capacity for this crane to verify that 40 tons will be sufficient.

Q1.5
Possible electrical shutdown of electrical systems existing in the SPF facility: Demolition and removal of the disassembly area floor and its sub-structure will include removal of two dozen or more existing electrical conduits and corresponding loss of electrical power. Will this be allowed? 

A1.5
A number of the embedded conduits are spares or no longer used.  Of the remaining, no "critical" conduits exist that without some prior planning and coordination couldn't be disconnected, rerouted and reconnected.

Q1.6
Vertical concrete door (pair) which closes off the bridge crane storage area: It may be necessary to completely remove or mechanically fix this door, in whole or in part, in its open position. Will this be allowed? 

A1.6
Yes.

Q1.7
Section 1.1.3.1: We assume that there will be no requirement to lift the test articles and fixtures in the wet condition. Is this correct? What are the weights of the largest test article segments that will be lifted? What are the weights of the lifting hardware? 

A1.7
Lifting test articles in the wet condition will not occur.  Recent information indicates that development hardware may simulate wet fluid tanks as solid cylindrical hardware; therefore, increasing the test article weight for lifts to a maximum of 56,500 lbs.  The maximum weight of lifting hardware is assumed to be 8,000 lb.

Q1.8
Section 2.4, Para. 4: Is the 120 foot dimension to be measured from the interior or exterior of the west wall? How strict is this requirement? 

A1.8
Interior of West wall.  This requirement is to permit the vertical lift of a 23 foot diameter test article from a rolling cart in the disassembly highbay with the mechanical vibration facility uncovered.  If the Contractor can provide a method for this lift, then the 120 foot dimension can be violated.

Q1.9
Section 4.1.10: How many safety reviews are there to be per facility (MVF and RATF)? Who is to attend these safety reviews and at what point in the projects are they required? 

A1.9
Due to the time constraint, it is expected that one safety review could be performed to cover both test facilities.  It would be expected that this review would occur after system checkouts and prior to the facilities final verification test.  The Contractor project manager at a minimum must attend this review and assist with responding to questions from the safety review committee.

Q1.10
Section 4.1.10: If it is not necessary for the Contractor to provide a hazards analysis report until each task’s final design, at what point in the design process does the GRC Safety Committee review the drawings to identify possible hazards? 

A1.10
It is anticipated that a subset of safety personnel and other discipline engineering staff would attend each progress review and the NASA PDR/CDR.  Their attendance at these reviews is to mitigate the risk of surprises and provide on-going evaluation of potential hazards as the design progresses.  Draft and preliminary versions of the hazards analysis are part of the deliverables for progress reviews.  The final hazards analysis should contain no major issues or significant changes if proper insight is made during progress reviews and if they are held and attended by the respective disciplines.
Q1.11
Section 4.2.2, Para. “v”: We assume that all of this information will be given to the Contractor at the kick-off meeting and that the contractor will verify the information with fieldwork. Is this correct? If not, then what is GRC’s intent regarding this information? 

A1.11
Yes, this information will be provided at the kick-off meeting.  Verification of these parameters is required by the Contractor.

Q1.12
Section L.7 1852.215-81 PROPOSAL PAGE LIMITATIONS: With respect to page-count restraints, can the technical proposal reference addendums or web pages (e.g., brochures or write-ups) for COTS items? 

A1.12
There is no restriction on referencing supporting information.  The Offeror's use of supplementary references, however, does not guarantee that the government's review of supplementary information will occur.  In all cases, the technical volume shall conform to the physical page limits as specified in section L.7.

Q1.13
Can soil and concrete be hauled within the NASA site and be left at a NASA site, or does it need to be hauled off site?

A. Would NASA do environmental assessment or is Contractor responsible?

B. If excavated soil can remain on site, what is the distance to the site? 

C. Can it be staged at Reactor?

A1.13
Soil and concrete can be utilized by the reactor site at Plum Brook Station.  Contractor is responsible for making environmental assessments on the material prior to movement.  Materials are expected to be ‘clean’, in other words no oil, PCB, lead paint, etc.  If tests indicate material is not clean, then other arrangements will need to be negotiated.  The reactor site is approximately 4 miles from SPF.

Q1.14
Will crane always be available for Contractor use?
A1.4
There will be a short time period when the new 40-ton bridge crane is installed where the existing 20-ton crane would not be available because it will be needed to install the new bridge.  There is not a specified date yet in which this transfer will take place.  It is not anticipated that the down-time would exceed more than 

Q1.15
Are any permits from local municipalities’ required (electrical, mechanical, bldg, environmental, etc.)?
A. If so, who is responsible to obtain them?

A1.15
Being a Federal Reservation, municipality permits are not required.

Q1.16
Location of job trailers and stations for materials, construction worker parking, is by Cryo yard acceptable?

A. Is there any restricted area?
A1.16
Cryoyard area is acceptable.  In general, most areas will be acceptable with the exception that accessibility must be retained to the GN2 tube trailer fill station, LN2 bottle fill station, and roads must remain accessible to emergency vehicle access. 

Q1.17 Soil Boring Logs were in the drawing sets.  Are the complete Geotechnical Reports available from the original construction of the SPF?

A1.17
See attachment entitled “Soil Survey Report.”

2.0 MVF 
Q2.1
Section 1.1.3.1: The test articles as described do not include test fixtures between the test articles and the MVF table.  What mass and dimensions should be used for the fixtures for these test articles? 

A2.1
A mass of 5000 lbs should be used.  A height of 8 inches should be used.

Q2.2
Section 2.1.3: This section excludes the CEV Full Stack for modal testing.  Is this correct? 

A2.2
The following sentence in the RFP should read:   ‘The test article geometries to be used for the design of the interface attachment mechanism shall be the CEV test articles and concept payload test articles shown in figures 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7.’  Conceptual modal testing could include a 1000 lb suspended shaker operating at 5 - 500 Hz.  The full stack is a potential modal test article. 

Q2.3
Section 2.1.6: Please clarify the “…facility owner’s operational needs.” 

A2.3
This is a reference to the operational requirements of section 2.1.4 only.

Q2.4
Seismic Data for Chamber: Are there any vibration sensitivity requirements that must be met for the surrounding area while the VTC chambers are in operation?    

A2.4
Other than designing both vibro-acoustic facilities such that each facilities operational effect does not exceed equipment manufacturer’s specifications, there are no other facility vibration sensitivity requirements.

3.0 RATF 
Q3.1
Section 1.1.1, Para. 5: What are the maximum allowable working pressures for the 217,000 gal and 28,000 gal LN2 tanks? 

A3.1
217,000 gallon is 3 psig, the 28,000 gallon is 150 psig.

Q3.2
Section 1.1.3.1.1: This paragraph lists the overall height of the CEV Short Abort Stack as 20.7 ft, but in Figure 6 this height is 276 inches = 23 ft even. Which is correct? 

A3.2
The figure 6 is correct.  The height is 23 feet.

Q3.3
Section 1.4, Para. “L”: What types of revisions are contemplated for the acoustic test spectra? Is GRC prepared to modify the contract as required to accommodate the revised spectra? 

A3.3
Launch abort system design alternatives are currently and in the near future undergoing wind tunnel testing in attempts to lower and verify the sound pressure levels that have been estimated by analysis.  It is expected that changes will be minimal, and would not affect the number and type of noise sources that are developed during proposal.  If significant changes occur to the spectra that require changes to number and/or type of noise sources, and the Contractor can indicate by analysis these changes, then the contract would require modification.  In any case the 163 dB OASPL level will not be changed.

Q3.4
Section 2.2, Para. 4: For Alternative II, is the maximum test article height still defined by the requirements for Alternative I or by the shorter height of 23 ft? 

A3.4
Alternative II requires 166 dB OASPL with the shorter test article height of 23 feet; however, testing must be able to be conducted with the remaining test articles of Alternative I at 163 dB OASPL.

Q3.5
Section 2.2.1, Para. 2: NASA-HDBK-7005, Section 10.5.2, Para. “a”, states “The distance between the test item and the nearest surface of the room should be no less than the maximum dimension of the test item.” For a 20 ft diameter test item, this would make the shorter, internal floor plan dimension 20 + 2(20) = 60 ft. The width of the Disassembly Area is only 70 ft, so a total of 10 ft would be left for the thickness of the chamber walls, the horns, etc. and 10 ft is not enough to accommodate these items. We suggest that this requirement from NASA-HDBK-7005 be ignored, both for the RATF floor plan dimensions and, obviously, for the height. Does GRC agree that we may ignore this requirement from NASA-HDBK-7005? 

A3.5
Agreed.

Q3.6
Section 2.2.1, Para. 3: NASA-HDBK-7005, Section 10.5.2, Para. “d”, recommends but does not appear to require steps from -12 to -0 dB in 3 dB increments. Are these the steps that GRC desires, i.e., the full set listed in NASA-HDBK-7005? 

A3.6
Testing increments will be performed in the stepwise fashion indicated in the NASA-HDBK-7005.

Q3.7
Section 2.2.1, Para. 3: NASA-HDBK-7005 does not define the required dwell time at each step for the stepwise increase from -12 dB to -0 dB. This will be largely up to the discretion of GRC, but could consume a large amount of nitrogen if GRC requires long dwell times. What is the minimum acceptable period to dwell at each step before moving to the next step?

A3.7
The minimum time period of each dwell step will be based upon the Contractor’s acoustic control system (ACS).  Preliminary steps are used to ensure that the acoustic control system is properly setting the desired sound pressure levels.  If the Contractor’s ACS is capable of providing positive feedback of correct control in a matter of a few seconds, then these steps can occur in that time frame.  It is expected that the -3 dB point may be held for up to 30-60 seconds.  Refer to paragraph 2.2.1: ‘Contractor shall verify the acoustic control system control input/feedback at each step increase prior to continuation to the next SPL increase.’  

Q3.8
Section 2.2.1, Para. 3: NASA-HDBK-7005 does not require a post-test comparison at a level below the full test level, although some groups performing tests in RATF’s desire such a post-test comparison. Does GRC desire a post-test comparison and if so, at what level and for how long? 

A3.8
It is conceivable that performing a post full level test check out at - 3 dB for up to 60 seconds may be requested by some customers.

Q3.9
Section 2.2.1, Para. 4: Should the word “maximum” actually be “minimum”? 

A3.9
Section 2.2.1, Para. 4 does state minimum.

Q3.10
Section 2.2.2, Para. 2: Will a pair of full-height doors that slide apart, away from the centerline, be acceptable? 

A3.10
Yes.

Q3.11
Section 2.2.2, Para. 5: What minimum height is required for the specimen door when the chamber height is increased to 73 ft? If the specimen door height must be increased to accommodate a chamber height of 73 ft, then may the bidders assume that the door will simply be replaced with a larger door when the chamber height is increased? 

A3.11
Replacement could be one option proposed.  If proposals provide other options that may permit modification to the doors later without replacement, then those options may be more desirable.

Q3.12
Section 2.2.2, Para. 7: Referencing the existing railcar rail (three pair) arrangement in the Disassembly Area, is it permissible to incorporate along with the center pair of rails the inner rail of the two outer pairs of standard gauge rails for a total of four rails entering the RATF? 

A3.12
NASA intends to use the rail tracks with standard rail car wheel axle assemblies.  This would preclude the use of one rail only from a rail track.

Q3.13
Section 2.2.2, Para. 8: Who will provide the “facility transfer rail carts” and what will be their configuration? 

A3.13
NASA intends to build and provide a new rail cart assembly for hardware transfers.  NASA will design the rail cart as necessary to utilize the new facilities; however, at a minimum, the new cart will span two rail tracks (and a maximum of three rail tracks) with standard rail car wheel axle assemblies to distribute loads properly. 

Q3.14
Section 2.2.2, Para. 10: The SOW provides essentially no requirements for the test fixtures that will be used to support the test articles in the RATF, but requires the vendor to provide a conceptual design that will be reviewed as part of the 30% design review submittal. The actual heights of the test fixtures could have a significant impact on the chamber volume and the acoustic power required. For purposes of the proposal, the bidder will have to assume a height based on almost no requirements. The bidder will also have to include a caveat that the proposal is based on the fixture designer being able to work within the assumed height and that, if the actual fixture height exceeds the assumed height, GRC will negotiate a change to accommodate the impact of the larger fixture. If this is not GRC’s intent, then please clarify your intent. 

A3.14
Test fixture height shall be five (5) feet.

Q3.15
Section 2.2.2, Para. 10: We assume that the test fixtures should move on the rail tracks. Is this correct? What does GRC intend to use to move a fixture and test article? 

A3.15
Acoustic test floor fixtures could adapt directly to rail cart top surface structures, and be lifted with the test article and set on the floor and bolted down, or possibly could be used only as an adapter in the acoustic chamber.  This second method would require removal of a NASA-supplied adapter that would necessarily be required to attach the vehicle to the cart.  Rail carts will be moved with a remote-controlled electric rail car mover.  The test article is intended to be lifted from the rail cart by the bridge crane with the hook/cabling passing through a plug in the chamber ceiling.

Q3.16
Section 2.2.3: Will the existing SPF systems be able to provide adequate, clean, conditioned air for the new HVAC systems or should the new HVAC systems rely on outside air?

A3.16
While the existing disassembly area HVAC system will be upgraded by the Government to provide a Fed-Std-209 Class 300K environment in the highbay, the Contractor shall rely on outside air for any new HVAC systems.

Q3.17
Section 2.2.4, Para. 1: Please confirm that the acoustic control system and the HSDAS may be separate systems (e.g., no common database, etc). 

A3.17
Yes, they should be separate systems.

Q3.18
Section 2.2.4, Para.1: The tolerance for OASPL and the statement succeeding it are in conflict. If 163 dB is the minimum allowable OASPL, then the lower tolerance must be stated as “-0 dB”. Does the requirement actually mean 163 dB -0 dB? In addition, controllers monitoring the OASPL can’t work with a “-0 dB” tolerance, so if this is what was intended, a new nominal OASPL with finite plus and minus tolerances must be defined. If the requirement is actually 163 dB -0 dB, then can NASA redefine the nominal OASPL and tolerances in this manner? 

A3.18
The RATF acoustic control system shall control the 163 dB OASPL within ±1dB.  During the facility design progress reviews, the Contractor shall provide design supporting data indicating that the facility is being designed for 163 dB nominal OASPL. 

Q3.19
Section 2.2.4, Para. 4: What control points and hardware constitute the “existing SPF control system”? 

A3.19
The existing SPF Facility control system is a combination HMI / PLC system using Wonderware InTouch software for the HMI and a Modicon Quantum system for the PLC.  The new control systems shall be able to integrate to this architecture using off the shelf drivers or communication protocols as appropriate.

Q3.20
Section 2.2.4, Para. 9: What is the allowable sound pressure level outside the Disassembly Area doors? 

A3.20
85 dBA

Q3.21
Section 2.2.5.3: It appears that a total of 12 microphones are required in a grid that will be moved to 6 different elevations, with a 20-minute test at each of the 6 elevations. Is this interpretation correct? 

A3.21
Yes, or additional microphones could be utilized to measure more points simultaneously.

Q3.22 Figures 3, 4, 6, & 7: Please confirm that all dimensions are in inches. 

A3.22
Dimensions are in inches.

Q3.23
Figure 3b: The overall height of the Launch Abort Stack appears to be 559 inches, but is not very legible. Please confirm this height. 

A3.23
Dimension is 559 inches.

Q3.24
Figure 8: Figures 4a and 4b are referenced in the spectra headings, but the SOW contains no Figure 4a or 4b. Please clarify this. 

A3.24
References to figures 4a or 4b should refer to figure 4.

Q3.25
Figure 8: Please clarify which spectra apply to Alternative I and which spectra apply to Alternative II. 

A3.25
All spectra apply to alternative I and alternative II.  The statement below is correct that only the Ascent Abort and Nominal Ascent tables are to be reduced to 163 dB OASPL for Alternative I, with Liftoff remaining unchanged; while all tables remain the same for Alternative II.

Q3.26
Figure 8: Please confirm that only the spectrum shapes shown in the Ascent Abort and Nominal Ascent tables are to be reduced to the 163 dB OASPL required for Alternative I (i.e., that the spectra shown in the Liftoff table should not be increased to 163 dB OASPL). Note also the comments and questions above concerning Section 2.2.4, Para.1, and the definition of nominal OASPL. 

A3.26
This is correct.

Q3.27
Figure 8: Should the spectrum shapes shown in the Ascent Abort and Nominal Ascent tables be used as-is for the 166 dB OASPL requirement for Alternative II or should they be reduced to a level of 166 dB OASPL? Note also the comments and questions above concerning Section 2.2.4, Para.1, and the definition of nominal OASPL. 

A3.27
The tables should be used as-is for the 166 dB OASPL requirement.

Q3.28
Figure 8: Please confirm that the spectra shown in the Liftoff table should not be increased to 166 dB OASPL for Alternative II. 

A3.28
That is correct; the liftoff spectra should not be increased or decreased for any alternative.

Q3.29
Sound outside is 85dB for Disassembly area, is there an “Exclusion Zone”?

A3.29
The area inside the nominally 6-foot thick disassembly area concrete walls will be an exclusion zone during RATF operations.  This is the reason for the disassembly area door limit switches in section 2.2.4, paragraph 8.  Areas outside this exclusion zone are limited to no greater than 85 dBA.
4.0 HSDAS 
Q4.1
Section 2.3.1: With respect to patch panels from the test articles (chambers) to the HSDAS, can it be assumed that the channel count is split evenly between them (512 per site)? 

A4.1
Each site requires the capability to patch all 1024 channels or a subset of the 1024 channels.

Q4.2
Section 2.3.8: Does this paragraph require backup storage to tape or a complete data archive and management system? Should the latter be considered an option or a requirement?

A4.2
As a minimum, the system shall have the following:

· A system to back up data and system configuration files to a tape system

· The system shall also have a server where the data will be automatically copied prior to the next data reading.  The server shall have, as a minimum, the storage requirements as outlined.  (The server provides near real time redundant files that will also allow analysts to access data files without querying the data system storage area.)

A complete data archive and management system should be considered an option, NOT a requirement.

Q4.3
What is meant by +/-0.5 degree in the 6th requirement of SOW Section 2.3.2?

The HSDAS guaranteed synchronous data stream to disk; scan time variation shall be less than ±0.5° at the specified scan rates.

A4.3
The variation in the scan time shall be less than (0.5 degrees/360 degrees)(1/scan rate) sec.  

As an example; at 50,000 samples/sec, the variation shall be less than (0.5/360)(1/50,000) ~ 28 nanoseconds.  In this example, the scan time is 1/50,000 = 20 microseconds.  The maximum allowed variation from that value is 0.5/360 * 100% = 0.14%.   

Q4.4
Do all 1024 Channels in DAS need to be displayed?

A4.4
All 1024 channels need to be displayable.  Not all 1024 need to be displayed at one time.  Generally, displays are configurable to allow channels to be viewed in a number of formats (numeric, strip chart, FFT, oscilloscope, etc.).  Generally, these displays are configured prior to testing.  Generally, displays may be selected and viewed as the user needs to see data.

The amount of data to be viewed in a particular display is dependent on the format that is being utilized.

Q4.5
Does the newly installed DAS have to “support the existing facility”? 

A4.5
For the purposes of this contract, the HSDAS is required to only support the two new test facilities.

